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1 VANCOUVER, B.C. 
2 April 17, 1990 
3 
4 THE REGISTRAR: Order in court. In the Supreme Court of British 
5 Columbia, this 17th day of April, 1990, Delgamuukw 
6 versus Her Majesty the Queen, at bar, my lord. 
7 THE COURT: Mr. Rush. 
8 MR. RUSH: Yes, my lord. I indicated on Friday that I would 
9 speak to your lordship about the timing of the 

10 plaintiffs' argument. 
11 THE COURT: Yes. 
12 MR. RUSH: And on that question we've examined the options, and 
13 we would like to propose that the plaintiffs be 
14 allocated a further week for the purposes of 
15 completing their argument, and we propose that that 
16 follow the break in May, and we do think that it will 
17 take a week, and we're -- we estimate that we're about 
18 three and a half to four days behind now, so I don't 
19 see any other way of making it up, my lord. We've 
20 examined evening sittings and Saturday sittings, and 
21 all of those options seem not feasible. So that's the 
22 plaintiffs' proposal. 
23 THE COURT: Yes. Mr. Plant. 
24 MR. PLANT: Well, my principal concern of course is whether 
25 that's going to have an effect on the amount of time 
26 that we have -- I guess both the week off, that we 
27 were anxious to have consecutively the 15 days. 
2 8 THE COURT: Yes. 
29 MR. PLANT: I don't know that's something that needs to be 
30 spoken to now. I don't think my friend is saying he's 
31 suggesting we give up one of our weeks. 
32 THE COURT: Well, he might suggest it, but not seriously. 
33 MR. PLANT: I do have one other observation, though, and that is 
34 that by my reckoning plaintiffs need about eight more 
35 days. That is that up until now, working on the 
36 assumption that the calculation I did this morning has 
37 some accuracy, that they delivered a seven-volume 
38 summary, and roughly speaking they're about two and a 
39 half volumes into that after nine days of argument. 
40 If you extrapolate from that, then my guestimate is 
41 that they are really going to be needing seven or 
42 eight more days rather than five, and I assume that my 
43 friend is suggesting that we're going to be sitting 
44 longer hours more consistently. I just want to be 
45 sure that the week estimate is realistic. 
46 THE COURT: Well, we can't do much about it if it isn't, can we. 
47 MR. PLANT: No. And it would help us in our plans, but that's 
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1 about all. 
2 THE COURT: You don't see any — or do you, Mr. Plant, see any 
3 extension of the time that you might require? 
4 MR. PLANT: We're looking at that question, my lord, and as of 
5 now I think we're okay, but obviously we're going to 
6 have to respond to some interesting questions, as the 
7 Cherokee removal, and whether Andrew Jackson was a 
8 racist, and other issues that have been raised by the 
9 plaintiffs which we had not thought were relevant to 

10 this case. We're having to examine those on a 
11 day-to-day basis, but as of now we're okay, the 15-day 
12 estimate is the one we're working on. 
13 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Macaulay. 
14 MR. MACAULAY: I hoped to be in a position to say that we would 
15 need less than our 15 days to make our argument, but 
16 having regard to the extended character of the 
17 Province's counter-claim, that doesn't seem too 
18 likely. Their interpretation of the history of this 
19 province is an unusual one, it needs to be answered in 
20 detail and with reference to many documents. Most of 
21 the documents they have referred to in their summary. 
22 So we will -- we may need all of our 15 days, a great 
23 deal of it, to deal with the counter-claim. This 
24 trial having gone on so long and the issues being so 
25 important, it's -- in my respectful submission on the 
26 question of cutting the plaintiffs off in an arbitrary 
27 way, clearly they need another week, and they may need 
28 three or four days after that. So be it. And the 
29 plaintiffs, and I think it's extremely important to 
30 all of the parties, particularly the plaintiffs, to 
31 have every opportunity to make their fullest argument 
32 possible. 
33 THE COURT: All right. Well, thank you, Mr. Macaulay. Well, 
34 Mr. Rush, I don't have any difficulty with the extra 
35 week that you're seeking, and I think we should make 
36 that assumption. I would assume though that it would 
37 be in Vancouver for the simple logistical reason 
38 there's going to be a gap in order to get the exhibits 
39 to Vancouver, and if we don't carry on in Vancouver as 
4 0 we planned, there would be even a further up-and-down 
41 period to get documents to Vancouver and sort it out, 
42 and while that may not be the most important thing in 
43 the world, I have made substantial commitments that 
44 are going to be awkward to be away from Vancouver 
45 after this four-week period plus the additional down 
46 week where I have to be away then as well, I can't be 
47 away longer than that. I also have to say that if it 
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MR. RUSH: 

THE COURT 
MR. RUSH: 

THE COURT 
MR. RUSH: 

was only an extra week for the plaintiffs and the 
defendants were still within their time it would seem 
to me we would still finish by June 30th at 4:00 p.m. 
If the Defendants need more time as well, then we will 
be into July, and I have to say that it may be that we 
would have to set it for sometime later in July rather 
than in the first two weeks. I had made some 
commitments in there that I would find very awkward to 
rearrange, because so many other people are involved 
and they've all made plans, and people have holidays 
at that time. So it seems to me that if we go beyond 
June 30th it may be -- I wouldn't put this any higher 
than a maybe -- then we would have to set it for the 
last one or two weeks in July and maybe the first week 
in August. I'm sure that's inconvenient to everyone 
here as well, and I hope it won't come to that, but I 
see no escape. I also think, in view of what happened 
this morning, that we should try and plan to start at 
the regular time next Monday, if that's convenient to 
counsel, that is at either 9:00, 9:30 or 10:00 
o'clock, whichever we settle on, rather than the late 
start on Monday mornings, if that's -- I mean if 
arrangements can be made. I would think that those of 
us who have later reservations could probably get them 
changed. All right, Mr. Rush. 
Yes. Just to comment on your last point first, 

whatever is convenient for the court to start on 
Monday morning is certainly convenient for us. 
: I think we need the time, so we better use it. 
Yes. To respond to two points raised by Mr. Plant; 
firstly, it is our intention to suggest to the court 
that there be longer hours, the proposal of the week 
was premised on our desire and hope that the case 
could be completed on the 30th of June. 
: Yes. 
So I don't dispute my friend's reckoning that 

possibly eight more days would be more comfortable to 
the plaintiffs, but our present feeling is that we 
were going to try to do it in five with extended 
hours. Just on the point of venue, my lord, I would 
ask your lordship to consider what submissions we've 
made previously on the issue of venue. I recognize 
both the concern logistically of moving the court and 
the exhibits to Vancouver and your lordship's 
schedule. Nonetheless, I do ask your lordship to 
consider the fact of the necessity of the plaintiffs' 
presence during the course of their argument, that one 
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of the main motivations for locating in Smithers 
during the course of the argument, and it is -- it 
continues to be our wish that the plaintiffs' argument 
be heard here. 

THE COURT: I understand all that, Mr. Rush, and we've been 
through it, but I have noticed that there hasn't been 
substantial attendance all of the time, and secondly, 
there has been four solid weeks, or there will be four 
solid weeks, and thirdly, I don't mind confessing to 
some weakness. I'm wearing out, and I think I'll be 
more weak when we're finished than I am now, and when 
we're finished at 4:30 or 4:00 o'clock June 30th you 
people will be finished and I will have an enormous 
job ahead of me. I don't think I can keep up that 
pace. And you may speak to the matter again, if you 
wish, but at the moment I would say if the plaintiffs 
are going to be needing more time, I'm happy to 
provide whatever reasonable amount of extra time you 
need. I don't think it will be here. That's my 
present view. 

MR. RUSH: Thank you. 
THE COURT: I also should report, it may be a bribe, somebody 

left an Easter egg on my desk following the old 
practise. If it's a bribe, it's not enough, and if 
it's not a bribe it's too much. But I'm grateful 
anyway. All right, Mr. Jackson, you were on page 218, 
I think. 

MR. JACKSON: Yes, my lord, depending on my voice, my lord, I 
may be in need of your Easter egg. 

THE COURT: I'm sure I have the right to alienate it without 
having a public meeting about it, Mr. Jackson. I have 
some Lifesavers if you need them. 

MR. JACKSON: Yes, my lord. We were at page 218, and your 
lordship will recall I had finished by very briefly 
summarizing --

THE COURT: Sorry, just before you start, Mr. Jackson. 

(DISCUSSION WITH REPORTER) 

MR. JACKSON: My lord, on Thursday afternoon I had just 
summarized the shifts in American policy from the 
period of removal, which takes us through to the late 
19th century, and how at that point treaty making was 
brought to an end and American policy shifted to 
assimilation model in which tribal holdings were 
broken up, and how in the 1930's the policy shifted 
again to one of retribalization, reinforcement of 
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1 tribal government, and how in the 40's and 50's again 
2 assimilation became the dominant theme leaning to the 
3 large shift in the 1970's, in what is called the 
4 self-determination era. And what I want to do now, my 
5 lord, is to turn to the jurisprudence, the American 
6 jurisprudence in the Post-Marshall era, and I've 
7 divided the material into two broad categories. The 
8 first deals with the Post-Marshall Jurisprudence on 
9 Aboriginal Ownership and the proprietary interest in 

10 lands and territory. And the second part of the 
11 material deals with the issue of aboriginal 
12 jurisdiction. And the first case to which I would 
13 refer your lordship is Beecher and Weatherby in 1877, 
14 and I say that, my lord, that Beecher and Weatherby is 
15 of significance insofar as it forms part of the 
16 jurisprudential chain culminating in the decision of 
17 the United States Supreme Court in Tee-Hit-Ton in 
18 1955. And Tee-Hit-Ton itself is of great significance 
19 insofar as it was one of the principal authorities 
20 relied upon by Mr. Justice Judson in the Calder case. 
21 A preliminary point before I deal with Beecher and 
22 Weatherby and the cases that follow it, is that 
23 reviewing these cases, my lord, particularly in terms 
24 of the propositions which emerges from them, is 
25 somewhat akin to the kind of enterprise which 
26 sometimes is engaged on by parties in which a person 
27 will give a message to the person next to them, it is 
28 then passed on and comes back through a series of 
29 retellings to the original hearer in a form which 
30 bears very little relationship to the original 
31 recitation, and I will be submitting that this 
32 jurisprudential chain is somewhat akin to that. The 
33 final culmination of the recitation of principle we 
34 say in Tee-Hit-Ton is absolutely no relationship to 
35 the original formulation of the Marshall principles. 
36 The facts in Beecher and Weatherby are set out in page 
37 218, and they were as follows: In 1846 an Act of 
38 Congress authorized establishment of the State of 
39 Wisconsin, and by this Act this was a common feature 
40 of congressional acts authorizing establishment of new 
41 states, promised to convey section 16 in every 
42 township, in fee, to the State of Wisconsin to the use 
43 of schools or educational purposes. The State, having 
44 acquired section 16s in fee in 1870 issued a patent to 
45 a logging company to log the land on a particular 
46 section 16. After the logs were cut, the plaintiffs 
47 asserted title to the logs by virtue of holding 
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1 patents from the United States issued in 1872. 
2 THE COURT: Were the plaintiffs Indians? 
3 A No, my lord. Neither the plaintiffs or the defendants 
4 were Indians. 
5 THE COURT: Yes, all right. 
6 MR. JACKSON: In this sense, the facts have a familial ring to 
7 them in the sense that there was logging involved and 
8 the dispute was between people claiming title, neither 
9 of whom were Indian. The argument made by the holder 

10 of the 1872 patent from the United States was that in 
11 1846 the territory was subject to unextinguished 
12 aboriginal title and the United States could not 
13 therefore grant the land in fee to the State of 
14 Wisconsin. The case therefore raised the question of 
15 the legal effect of Indian title on the power of the 
16 federal government to make a grant in fee to lands 
17 subject to that title. Mr. Justice Field in 
18 delivering the opinion of the court said this: 
19 
20 "It is true, that for many years before Wisconsin 
21 became a state, the (Menomonee Tribe) occupied 
22 various portions of her territory, and roamed over 
23 nearly the whole of it. In 1825, the United 
24 States undertook to settle by treaty the 
25 boundaries of land claimed by different tribes 
26 of Indians as between themselves and agreed to 
27 recognize the boundaries thus established, the 
28 tribes acknowledging the general controlling power 
29 of the United States, and disclaiming all 
30 dependence upon and connection with any other 
31 power. The land thus recognized as belonging to 
32 the Menomonee tribe embraced the section in 
33 controversy in this case... But the right which 
34 the Indians held was only that of occupancy. The 
35 fee was in the United States, subject to that 
36 right, and could be transferred by them whenever 
37 they chose. The grantee, it is true, would take 
38 only the naked fee, and could not disturb the 
39 occupancy of the Indians; that occupancy could 
40 only be interfered with or determined by the 
41 United States." 
42 
43 And we say, my lord, that to this point Mr. Justice 
44 Fields' statement is a restatement of the principles 
45 first enunciated by the U.S. Supreme Court in Fletcher 
46 and Peck as to the legal co-existence of what in this 
47 case is referred to as the "naked", what is in St. 
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1 Catherine's Milling was referred to as the underlying 
2 title and the Indian title. Mr. Justice Field went on 
3 to say: 
4 
5 "It is to be presumed that in this matter" --
6 
7 That is in the determination of the Indian title: 
8 
9 "the United States would be governed by such 

10 considerations of justice as would control a 
11 Christian people in their treatment of an ignorant 
12 and dependent race. Be that as it may, the 
13 propriety or justice of their action towards the 
14 Indians with respect to their lands is a question 
15 of governmental policy, and is not a matter open 
16 to discussion in a controversy between third 
17 parties, neither of whom derives title from the 
18 Indians. The right of the United States to 
19 dispose of the fee of lands occupied by them" --
20 
21 That's the Indians: 
22 
23 "has always been recognized by this court from the 
24 foundation of the government. It was so ruled in 
25 Johnson v. Mcintosh." 
26 
27 This proposition, this passage was cited by Mr. 
28 Justice Reed in Tee-Hit-Ton for the proposition that 
29 extinguishment by the United States of Indian title is 
30 a political and non-justiciable matter. But it should 
31 be pointed out, as we do, my lord, that Mr. Justice 
32 Field in Beecher and Weatherby specifically limits his 
33 comments regarding the justiciability of 
34 extinguishment to disputes between third parties. He 
35 does not say that in a suit brought by the Indians 
36 themselves, they would be foreclosed from challenging 
37 the propriety of an extinguishment. We were referring 
38 you back, my lord, in this regard to the statement by 
39 Mr. Justice Chapman in Symonds, set out in the bottom 
40 of page 220, in relation to the Marshall decisions: 
41 
42 "Although the courts of the United States, in suits 
43 between their own subjects" --
44 
45 Which of course is exactly the situation in Beecher 
46 and Weatherby: 
47 
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1 "would not allow a grant to be impeached 
2 under pretext that the native title has not been 
3 extinguished, yet they would certainly not 
4 hesitate to do so in a suit by one of the Native 
5 Indians." 
6 
7 As we will see in looking at subsequent cases, in 
8 particular Tee-Hit-Ton, Beecher has been cited as 
9 authority to the proposition that the United States 

10 has an unreviewable discretion as to how it 
11 extinguishes Indian title. In light of its citation 
12 for that proposition, we say it is important, 
13 following up your lordship's on-the-ground analysis, 
14 to note by what method the Indian title was in fact in 
15 this case extinguished, and what one finds, as the 
16 next passage makes clear, is that the aboriginal 
17 underlying title, the title of the Menomonee tribe was 
18 extinguished in accordance with what we say are the 
19 fundamental principles by treaty. And there Mr. 
20 Justice Field makes this very clear: 
21 
22 "The greater part of the State was, at the date of 
23 the compact, (admitting Wisconsin into statehood) 
24 occupied by different Tribes, and the grant of 
25 sections in other portions would have been 
26 comparatively of little value. Congress 
27 undoubtedly expected that at no distant date the 
28 State would be settled by white people, and the 
29 semi-barbarous condition of the Indian Tribes 
30 would give place to the higher civilization of our 
31 race; and it contemplated by its benefactions to 
32 carry out in that State, as in other States, 'its 
33 ancient and honoured policy' of devoting the 
34 central section in every township for the 
35 education of the people. Accordingly, soon after 
36 the admission of the State into the Union means 
37 were taken for the extinguishment of the Indian 
38 title. In less than eight months afterwards the 
39 principal Tribe, the Menomonees, by Treaty, ceded 
40 to the United States all their lands in Wisconsin, 
41 though permitted to remain on them for a period of 
42 two years, and until the President should give 
43 notice that they were wanted." 
44 
45 And as in St. Catherine's --
46 THE COURT: Before you go on, from what is that a quotation, is 
47 that from Beecher and Weatherby? 
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1 MR. JACKSON: That's from Beecher and Weatherby, my lord. 
2 THE COURT: All right, thank you. 
3 MR. JACKSON: And so we see that, as in St. Catherine's Milling 
4 itself, Beecher and Weatherby is a case in which 
5 Indian title was extinguished by consent through 
6 treaty-making, and yet it is a case which has been 
7 cited, as has St. Catherine's, for the proposition 
8 that Indian title can be extinguished at the pleasure 
9 of the sovereign unilaterally. 

10 The second case to which I refer your lordship is 
11 the case of Buttz and Northern Pacific Railroad, and 
12 again, I would make the point I made last Thursday, my 
13 lord, that these cases are not, to use the phrase of 
14 my friend last Thursday, the plaintiffs cherry-picking 
15 through the orchard of American jurisprudence. I have 
16 chosen these cases principally because they are cases 
17 which crop up in the leading Canadian decisions, and 
18 therefore they have been seen as cases which are 
19 viewed by Canadian courts as ones which are important 
20 in terms of looking at American jurisprudence. 
21 THE COURT: I have a problem about Beecher and Weatherby that 
22 you can assist me with. The patents in dispute in 
23 Beecher and Weatherby were issued in 1872, and the 
24 treaty was when? 
25 MR. JACKSON: The treaty was, I believe, my lord, way before 
26 that. I haven't made a note of that in the --
27 THE COURT: All right. Well then, what I'm wondering about is 
28 whether or not the title having been extinguished by 
29 the treaty, assuming -- well, I'm sorry, I don't know 
30 if it's by the treaty or not, but did the Indians 
31 remain in possession? 
32 MR. JACKSON: No, my lord. My understanding is that under the 
33 terms of the treaty the Indians were allowed to remain 
34 in possession as the last cited passage makes clear, 
35 until the lands were required, and under the terms of 
36 the treaty they were then to move to a reservation. 
37 THE COURT: Well, it said until the President gave them notice. 
38 MR. JACKSON: Yes. And by the time the patents were issued in 
39 this case the Menomonees were no longer in possession 
40 of the lands. The argument, of course, was that 
41 because of the type of the grant to Wisconsin, the 
42 lands were held by Indian title, Wisconsin could not 
43 obtain any rights to the lands because the United 
44 States had no rights to give. And what the court in 
45 fact said was it's consistent with St. Catherine's 
46 that the United States did in fact have rights to 
47 grant to Wisconsin, those rights being the underlying 
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THE COURT 

MR. 
THE 
MR. PLANT: 

THE 
MR. 
THE 

MR. 

title, which is Wisconsin got the underlying title in 
section 16s, and at such point as the Indian title was 
extinguishable by treaty, the State of Wisconsin then 
had the entire beneficial interest in the land and 
could make a grant of those lands, as it did to a 
patentee who took the title and the United States had 
nothing left. 

I'm having some trouble with the facts, because the 
Act of Congress establishing the State of Wisconsin 
was 1846, and the State having acquired section 16 in 
1870, so the argument then comes along that the 
patents were not issued until 1872. And it may be 
that if I sat down I could figure it out, but at the 
moment I have a little bit of uncertainty as to 
exactly what the contest was and what the -- well, you 
don't know the date of the treaty? 

JACKSON: Well, we're just endeavouring to find that. 
COURT: All right. 

Well, I found three references to treaties. 
There's -- in the first passage cited by my friend, 
there is a reference to an undertaking made by the 
United States in 1825, that would be in the passage 
cited --

Yes. I see that. 
-- by my friend. 
That says they undertook to settle by treaty. I 

suppose that's the same thing. 
That's right. And then the last passage cited by my 

friend, the last sentence says -- or the last two 
sentences say: 

"Accordingly, soon after the admission of the State 
into the Union" --

Which would be 1846: 

"means were taken for the extinguishment of the 
Indian title. In less than eight months 
afterwards the principal Tribe, by 
treaty, ceded the land." 

And that -- that's the passage quoted on page 221 of 
my friend's argument. Now, in the report of the case 
following that passage there are references to other 
treaties in 1853 and 1854, but I haven't yet followed 
the sequence. 

JACKSON: Those are the treaties, my lord, I understand the 

COURT 
PLANT 
COURT 

MR. PLANT 
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1 ones in 1853, 1854 by which the Menomonees ceded their 
2 lands. So the sequence was the establishment of the 
3 State of Wisconsin, the grant to the State of 
4 Wisconsin of the section 16s in fee, and then some 
5 years after that, the extinguishment of the Indian 
6 title by treaty, and then subsequent to that the grant 
7 of the patents. 
8 THE COURT: All right, thank you. 
9 MR. JACKSON: And that, my lord, is at page 442 of the report, 

10 that's volume 11 tab 2 of our book of authorities. 
11 THE COURT: All right, thank you. And your understanding is 
12 that the Indians did leave the lands shortly after the 
13 treaty? 
14 MR. JACKSON: Yes, my lord. These were lands in the same way as 
15 in St. Catherine's Milling, these were lands in which 
16 the Indians no longer laid any claims based on 
17 aboriginal title, having given them up by virtue of 
18 the treaty process. 
19 THE COURT: Yes, all right. 
20 MR. JACKSON: The second case, my lord, is Buttz against 
21 Northern Pacific Railroad in 1886, again a decision 
22 written by Mr. Justice Field, and the facts here were 
23 that the lands were in the territory of Dakota, a 
24 railway company, Northern Pacific Railroad, asserted 
25 title to the premises under a grant laid by an Act of 
26 Congress in 1864. The Defendants asserted that he 
27 settled upon the premises in 1871 and had taken the 
28 necessary steps to perfect a right of pre-emption 
29 under the relative pre-emption law in the Territory. 
30 The Congressional Act in 1864 establishing the 
31 railroad was entitled "An Act Granting Lands to Aid in 
32 the Construction of a Railroad and Telegraph Line from 
33 Lake Superior to Puget Sound on the Pacific Coast by 
34 the Northern Route". By its third section this Act 
35 provided that: 
36 
37 "There be and hereby is, granted to the Northern 
38 Pacific Railroad Co. its successors and assigns 
39 for the purpose of aiding in the construction of 
40 said railroad and telegraph line...every alternate 
41 section of public land, not mineral, designated by 
42 odd numbers, to the amount of twenty alternate 
43 sections per mile, on each side of said railroad 
44 line, as said company may adopt, through the 
45 Territories of the United States and ten alternate 
46 sections of land per mile on each side of said 
47 railroad whenever it passes through any State and 
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1 whenever on the line thereof the United States 
2 have full title, not reserved, sold, granted or 
3 otherwise appropriated, and free from pre-emption 
4 or other claims or rights." 
5 
6 At the time this Act was passed, the land in 
7 controversy and other lands covered by the grant were 
8 under the occupation of the Sisseton and Wahpeton 
9 Bands of Dakota or the Sioux Indians. In the grant to 

10 the railroad company Congress was not unmindful of the 
11 title of Indians to the lands granted, and the Act 
12 stipulated, as did a number of the Acts passed at this 
13 time, the Act stipulated for the extinguishment of the 
14 Indian title by the United States as rapidly as might 
15 be consistent with public policy and the welfare of 
16 the Indians. And you see, my lord, those words appear 
17 again in Santa Fe Railroad Company, a case to which I 
18 will shortly be returning. After the passage of the 
19 Act "the United States took steps, first to obtain 
20 from the Indian the right to construct railroads, 
21 wagon roads and telegraph lines across their lands, 
22 and to make such other improvements upon them as the 
23 interests of the government might require, and 
24 afterwards to obtain a cession of their entire title." 
25 My lord, this process bears some resemblance to the 
26 process which I apprised your lordship of last week, 
27 when in Upper Canada the government required the 
28 Surveyor General of Upper Canada, Mr. Collins, to 
29 purchase lands from the Missisauga Indians in order to 
30 complete the communication from the Bay of Quinte to 
31 Lake Huron, and in relation to the discussion we had 
32 last week, in which my understanding of Ontario 
33 geography, was demonstrated to be wilfully inadequate, 
34 since then Mr. Rush has taken me to a map and has 
35 showed me that in fact that purchase we talked about 
36 last week, the Toronto purchase, starts from the Bay 
37 of Quinte and goes along the shores of Lake Ontario to 
38 a point close to Toronto, and then up to Lake Simcoe. 
39 But my point here, my lord, is to make the point that 
40 this process of acquiring the right-of-way was one 
41 which is reflected in the provisions of this 
42 Congressional Act. And at page 224 we see that the 
43 acquisition by the United States of the right to 
44 construct railroads and telegraph lines was 
45 accomplished through a treaty concluded between the 
46 United States and the Indian tribes in 1867. And the 
47 extinguishment of the aboriginal title to the rest of 
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1 their lands was accomplished through a further 
2 agreement, the terms of which were first proposed by 
3 the Indians in 1872, but this was not finally ratified 
4 until some years later. And my lord, you will see 
5 that the first reference is to a treaty and the second 
6 reference is to further agreements. That reflects the 
7 fact in 1871 congress had terminated the treaty-making 
8 process, that didn't stop agreements further -- being 
9 made further by congressional orders, but they were no 

10 longer called treaties. 
11 The Supreme Court held that the grant by the 
12 United States to the railway company in 1864 passed a 
13 fee to the company subject to the Indian title and 
14 that under the terms of the statute the lands 
15 hereafter were not subject to pre-emption by third 
16 parties. The court rejected the argument that land 
17 subject to Indian title could not be the subject of a 
18 grant. And in the course of his judgment Mr. Justice 
19 Field said: 
20 
21 "At the time the Act of July 2nd, 1864, was passed, 
22 the title of the Indian Tribes was not 
23 extinguished. But that fact did not prevent the 
24 grant of Congress from operating to pass the fee 
25 of the land to the company. The fee was in the 
26 United States. The Indians had merely a right of 
27 occupancy, a right to use the lands subject to the 
2 8 Dominion and control of the government. The 
29 grant conveyed the fee subject to this right of 
30 occupancy. The Railroad Company took the property 
31 with this incumbrance. The right of the Indians, 
32 it is true, could not be interfered with or 
33 determined except by the United States. No 
34 private individual could invade it, and the 
35 manner, time, and conditions of its extinguishment 
36 were matters solely for the consideration of the 
37 government and are not open to contestation in the 
38 judicial tribunals. As we said in Beecher v. 
39 Weatherby 'it is to be presumed that in this 
40 matter the United States will be governed by 
41 such considerations of justice as would control a 
42 Christian people in their treatment of an ignorant 
43 and dependent race...'" 
44 
45 And the quote goes on to recite the full passage I've 
46 already given to your lordship in Beecher and 
47 Weatherby. 
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COURT: At the start of that passage, Mr. Justice Field said 
that the fee was in the United States subject to the 
right of occupancy. By what path or route do you say 
the fee was in the United States? 

JACKSON: Through the doctrine of discovery, my lord. These 
cases build upon the platform of the original Marshall 
principles that by virtue of the doctrine of discovery 
the underlying fee in the lands vest in the 
discovering nation, and according to the American 
doctrine is subject to grant, subject to, however, the 
right of the aboriginal peoples. 

COURT: Is there any discussion of that in the judgment, or 
is that just a given? 

JACKSON: As I recall, there's -- there's a citation to 
Johnson and Mcintosh --

COURT: All right. 
JACKSON: -- but by this point these principles, as it were, 

are viewed as being well-established and well-grounded 
as part of the common law. 

COURT: But this land is -- is it west of the Mississippi or 
east of the Mississippi? 

JACKSON: This is west of the Mississippi. This is the 
Dakotas. 

COURT: Is there any discussion in the judgment about the 
breach of Royal Proclamation. 

JACKSON: No, my lord. In relation to the Johnson and 
Mcintosh there is a discussion --

COURT: Yeah. There is in Johnson but not in this case. 
JACKSON: He cites Johnson and Mcintosh but there's no 

discussion of the Royal Proclamation. 
COURT: Thank you. 
JACKSON: By this time the Royal Proclamation in the United 

States had sort of receded into the midst of distant 
memory. 

COURT: It was replaced by statutes? 
JACKSON: Yes, my lord. And you'll find at page 335, my 

lord, in the first column of Buttz that Mr. Justice 
Field starts off his judgment having said that the fee 
was in the United States. He cites Johnson and 
Mcintosh and he cites the doctrine of discovery for 
that proposition. And immediately after citing 
Johnson and Mcintosh, Mr. Justice Field cites another 
one of the cases decided in the early days of the 
Marshall court, which I've already referred your 
lordship to, Clark and Smith for the proposition that: 

"The ultimate fee (encumbered within the Indian 
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1 right of occupancy) was in the Crown previous to 
2 the Revolution, and in the States of the 
3 Union afterwards, and subject to grant. This 
4 right of occupancy was protected by the political 
5 power and respected by the courts until 
6 extinguished, when the patentee took the 
7 unencumbered fee." 
8 
9 And again, my lord, looking at the factual matrix of 

10 Buttz, we see that this case, as in Beecher and 
11 Weatherby, did not involve a dispute in which the 
12 Indians sought to set up their title as against a 
13 grantee of the underlying fee who was seeking to 
14 dispossess them from their lands. And recital of the 
15 facts as I've given them to your lordship shows that 
16 congress recognized its lawful obligations to obtain a 
17 consensual surrender prior to construction taking 
18 place and prior to its grantee in fact taking 
19 possession and entering into actual occupation of the 
20 territory. In both the Buttz case and in Beecher and 
21 Weatherby, we say, my lord, at the bottom of page 225 
22 that the court's reliance on Johnson and Mcintosh for 
23 the relative relationship between the underlying fee, 
24 referred to as the native fee in Buttz -- in Beecher, 
25 and the Indian title is well founded, but we say that 
26 the further obiter remarks regarding the 
27 non-justicability of the manner of extinguishment are 
28 not supported by the Marshall judgments, nor, and this 
29 is perhaps more significant, nor were they required or 
30 relevant to any of the issues before the Supreme Court 
31 in these two cases. In both cases the issues were 
32 ones as between parties competing for an interest in 
33 lands to which the Indian title had already been 
34 surrendered by consent. The reference in the cases, 
35 my lord, to this general language as to the 
36 non-justicability of the -- of Indian title and the 
37 presumption that the government will, in its dealings 
38 with Indian people, be governed by such considerations 
39 as a Christian nature would bring to bear upon an 
40 ignorant and dependent race is, we say, referable to 
41 one of the significant, if in fact probably the most 
42 significant changes which took place in the way the 
43 Indian tribes were characterized legally and in 
44 general discourse in the late 19th century. And I 
45 refer you, my lord, at page 226 for what we say is the 
46 explanation for Mr. Justice Fields' assertion as to 
47 the non-justicability of extinguishment is to be found 
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1 in the context of the major shifts which had been 
2 taking place in the American Indian policy. And those 
3 are best reflected in the decision of the United 
4 States Supreme Court in the Kagama case, United States 
5 and Kagama in 1886, and that case arose out of a 
6 previous decision of the U.S. Supreme Court in the 
7 case of Ex parte Crow Dog. And in Ex parte Crow Dog, 
8 my lord, in 1883 the Supreme Court had taken the 
9 position that in relation to an Indian charged with 

10 the murder of another Indian on an Indian reservation, 
11 that case was only amenable to the tribal court 
12 system. The federal courts had no jurisdiction over 
13 intertribal crime, and the court in Ex parte Crow 
14 Dog -- and I've set out passages from the judgment of 
15 page 227, I'm not going to take your lordship to them, 
16 but in the course of its judgment, in saying indeed 
17 that the federal courts had no jurisdiction over this 
18 case, the courts made certain references to the 
19 character of Indian tribal justice as demonstrating 
20 why in fact it would not be within the purview or 
21 jurisdiction of federal courts, and the language 
22 refers to the red man's revenge. And what happened 
23 following that decision was that congress acted to 
24 deal with the fall out from that vacuum, so it 
25 appeared, in the criminal justice system, and they 
26 passed the Major Crimes Act of 1885, which subjected 
27 intertribal crimes, crimes committed on a reservation 
28 by Indians against other Indians, that was subjected 
29 to federal jurisdiction in relation to certain major 
30 crimes, murder for example, robbery, rape, and a 
31 number of other crimes, major felonies, were subjected 
32 to the jurisdiction of the federal courts. And in 
33 Kagama, what happened was that that jurisdiction was 
34 challenged. The Major Crimes Act was challenged by 
35 Kagama following his prosecution and conviction under 
36 the Major Crimes Act, and the Supreme Court in 
37 upholding the Major Crimes Act as being within the 
38 jurisdiction of congress in relation to Indians, 
39 stated, and I've set out at the top of page 228 part 
40 of their holdings, that Indian tribes were not foreign 
41 nations, of course asserting what had already been 
42 established in the Cherokee cases, and that within the 
43 borders of the United States "the soil and the 
44 people...are under the political control of the 
45 Government of the United States, or of the State of 
46 the Union". From this point the court concluded that 
47 Indians must be subject to the power of either one or 
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1 the other, because, as the court says, "there exists 
2 within the broad domain of sovereignty but these two". 
3 And that is an argument, my lord, which is, as I 
4 understand it, both the Province and the federal 
5 government make as being applicable to this case, not 
6 relying upon Kagama, but relying upon provisions of 
7 the Canadian Constitution, that the Canadian 
8 Constitution recognizes federal jurisdiction, and the 
9 Canadian Constitution recognizes provincial 

10 jurisdiction, but it says nothing about Indian 
11 jurisdiction. And therefore, the claims of the 
12 plaintiffs asserting jurisdiction have no place within 
13 Canadian confederation. In 1886 the U.S. Supreme 
14 Court took a similar view of the Constitutional 
15 arrangements in the United States, but as we will 
16 demonstrate to your lordship later, the call came back 
17 to what we say is a more consistent position, 
18 consistent with the original Marshall principles. 
19 Because we say, my lord, at page 228 that the analysis 
20 of the Supreme Court in Kagama in 1886, while it 
21 referred to the Cherokee cases, including Cherokee 
22 Nation and Worcester v. Georgia, ignored in fact Chief 
23 Justice Marshall's unequivocable affirmation of the 
24 inherent pre-existing rights of internal 
25 self-government of Indian nations. And the omission, 
26 we say, is revealed in the following passage from Mr. 
27 Justice Miller's judgment, and you will see, my lord, 
28 he says: 
29 
30 "These Indian nations are wards of the nation." 
31 
32 And my lord, "are" should be underlined, this was 
33 emphasis in the original one by Mr. Justice Miller: 
34 
35 "These Indian nations are the wards of the nation. 
36 They are communities dependent on the United 
37 States. Dependent largely for their daily food. 
38 Dependent for their political rights. They owe no 
39 allegiance to the States and receive from them no 
40 protection. Because of local ill feeling, the 
41 people of the states where they are found are 
42 often their deadliest enemies. From their very 
43 weakness and helplessness so largely due to the 
44 force of dealing with the government with them and 
45 the treaties in which it has been promised, 
46 there arises the duty of protection and with it 
47 the power. This has always been recognized by the 
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1 Executive and by Congress and by this Court 
2 whenever the question has arisen... 
3 The power of the General Government over these 
4 remnants of a race once powerful, now weak and 
5 diminished in numbers, is necessary to their 
6 protection, as well as to the safety of those 
7 among whom they dwell." 
8 
9 Now, my lord, we say this language stands in stark 

10 contrast to the language of Chief Justice Marshall in 
11 Worcester. In that case, Chief Justice Marshall, in 
12 articulating the duty of protection as an 
13 international law obligation, which had been 
14 domesticated in the context of particular treaties, he 
15 said that the duty of protection did not strip the 
16 protected nations of their "right of government". 
17 This, we say, was turned on its head in Kagama as the 
18 justification for what is known as plenary federal 
19 power over Indian tribes. And the extent to which 
2 0 Kagama was a departure from the fundamental principles 
21 of the Marshall decisions, is we say well described by 
22 a recent American commentary. 
23 THE COURT: Before we get to that, did — I haven't looked at 
24 it, but I don't recall you reading to me anything from 
25 Chief Justice Marshall and any of his judgments which 
26 dealt specifically with the overall application of the 
27 criminal law. I thought he talked as you quoted here, 
28 right of government. Did he talk about criminal law? 
29 MR. JACKSON: There was, my lord, inferentially in that in the 
30 beginning of -- and I'm not sure whether it's 
31 Cherokee -- it's the beginning of Worcester and 
32 Georgia, there is a recitation of the effect of the 
33 Georgia laws. 
34 THE COURT: Mm-hmm. 
35 MR. JACKSON: And one of the effects of the Georgia laws was 
36 that for the Cherokees to try one of their members in 
37 a Cherokee court and impose a death sentence, was 
38 rendered by the Cherokee -- by the Georgia laws as an 
39 act of murder because it dismantled the Cherokee 
40 institutions. So I think to that extent, in talking 
41 about the rights of self-government even though that 
42 wasn't an issue particularly before him, he envisaged 
43 the right to self-government to be cast in very broad 
44 terms, but specifically no, my lord, there was no 
45 argument addressed in that case, that whatever might 
46 be the rights of self-government in relation to other 
47 matters, so far as the criminal law was concerned, 
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1 there might be special considerations. And I think, 
2 my lord, the point was well taken, because if we 
3 review the early treaties, there often was in those 
4 early treaties, going back into the -- 17th century, 
5 there was special clauses often regarding what would 
6 happen if in fact a crime was committed, albeit within 
7 the Indian country, against a British colonist, or 
8 what would happen if an Indian committed a crime while 
9 residing within the boundaries of the Colonies. So I 

10 right from the early point there was a recognition 
11 that in relation to the criminal law special 
12 considerations might be relevant. 
13 THE COURT: It seems to me you read me a passage from the early 
14 days after the piece from Paris where in Canada it was 
15 stated that if there was a crime of murder that it 
16 would be tried in the ordinary course. 
17 MR. JACKSON: Yes, my lord. Well, in fact, the — I think one 
18 of the maritime treaties. 
19 THE COURT: I thought -- I think you gave me that in a section 
20 dealing with Quebec, but I speak subject to your 
21 better recollection. 
22 MR. JACKSON: Many of those treaties did in fact make very 
23 special provision for the criminal law. 
24 THE COURT: I wonder if this goes as far as -- that you're 
25 contending that it turned Marshall's principle on its 
26 head. I wonder if Marshall really was talking about 
27 what he had talked about the right of government, he 
28 was talking about the criminal law. 
29 MR. JACKSON: I think to the extent that Kagama, my lord, was 
30 limited -- if Kagama was seen as being limited to 
31 criminal jurisdiction, I would not be contending that 
32 the case was as inconsistent as I say it is with 
33 Marshall. Kagama, however, has been seen in 
34 subsequent cases as authorizing the very broad federal 
35 plenary power in areas outside of the criminal law, 
36 and it's for the broad propositions rather than its 
37 application in the particular situation in Kagama, 
38 which was the assertion of criminal jurisdiction, not 
39 generally, but in relation to particular major crimes. 
4 0 THE COURT: All right. 
41 MR. JACKSON: The commentary I'm referring to, my lord, opines 
42 this statement: 
43 
44 "The holding in Kagama... grossly overstated the 
45 extent of federal power. Because of the 
46 historical military and political position of the 
47 colonies, the Framers never conceived of 
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1 exercising power over Indian nations, but instead 
2 provided a framework in the constitution for 
3 conducting relations with them as equal sovereign 
4 nations. 
5 In establishing a theory of inherent federal power 
6 over internal Indian affairs, the Kagama court 
7 misinterpreted the discovery doctrine, disregarded 
8 Indian sovereignty, manipulated the federalism 
9 concepts embodied in Worcester and the 1871 Act." 

10 
11 Which abolished treaty making: 
12 
13 "treated federal Indian policy as a 
14 non-justiciable political matter, and relied on a 
15 historically inaccurate characterization of the 
16 Indian tribes as weak, helpless and diminished 
17 dependent wards in need of protection. The court 
18 created a power in Congress over Indian nations 
19 which was unlimited, unconstitutional and 
2 0 unreviewable." 
21 
22 Now, my lord, we don't necessarily adopt all those 
23 propositions, nor is it necessary for your lordship to 
24 come to any determination as to whether or not Kagama 
25 fits into that. My point is simply to explain how it 
26 was that in Beecher and Weatherby and in Buttz the 
27 courts could add to the conclusions which were 
28 necessary to their decision certain statements which 
29 were not necessary to the decision which talks about a 
30 very broad unreviewable position, discretion in 
31 congress. And while on this point, my lord, if I may 
32 just make this comparative reference, the -- this 
33 re-characterization of tribes as in fact being 
34 helpless, dependent and therefore their being within 
35 congressional or federal central authorities, the need 
36 to in fact protect them, as it were, from themselves, 
37 is, we say, reflective in the judgments of Chancellor 
38 Boyd in St. Catherine's Millings, the judgment of Mr. 
39 Justice Henry and Mr. Justice Tacherau, who also 
40 re-characterized the nature of the tribes of Indian 
41 nations in Canada, and in so doing we say 
42 recharacterized the nature of their rights. And this 
43 is something which was not just limited to the United 
44 States and to Canada in the last part of the 20th 
45 century. Last week, my lord, when I was dealing with 
46 the Treaty of Waitangi, I referred your lordship to a 
47 decision of the New Zealand High Court in 1877 at the 
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1 same time roughly as we're talking about here in the 
2 decision of Wi Parata, spelled W-I, P-A-R-A-T-A, and 
3 The Bishop of Wellington. And, my lord, in that case 
4 Chief Justice Prendegast said something which your 
5 lordship will readily see bears a close relationship 
6 do what the court said in Kagama. Chief Justice 
7 Prendegast made this statement in relation to a claim 
8 by the Maoris in relation to land which had been 
9 granted to the Bishop of Wellington without their 

10 title having been extinguished before. And the court 
11 in Wi Parata said "We can't hear your claim. The 
12 court cannot go behind the Crown grant", and in the 
13 course of so concluding said: 
14 
15 "In the case of primitive barbarians, the Supreme 
16 executive Government must acquit itself as best it 
17 may, of its obligations to respect native 
18 proprietory rights, and of necessity must be the 
19 sole arbiter of its own justice. Its acts in this 
20 particular cannot be examined or called in 
21 question by any tribunal, because there exist 
22 no known principles whereon a regular adjudication 
23 can be based." 
24 
25 And in that same case, my lord, in relation to the 
26 Treaty of Waitangi, as I told your lordship, the court 
27 concluded that the Treaty of Waitangi was a nullity 
28 because, and in this sense presaging what his honour 
29 Judge Patterson said about the Mic Macs in relation to 
30 their treaty with the Crown: 
31 
32 "No body politic existed capable of making cession 
33 of sovereignty, nor could the thing itself exist." 
34 
35 So we find, my lord, at this particular juncture in 
36 history, the courts in Canada, in the United States 
37 and in New Zealand taking a position that there is 
38 with the federal executive, whoever is 
39 constitutionally charged with responsibility in 
40 relation to Indian affairs, a broad unreviewed 
41 discretion which gives rise to statements that their 
42 rights exist at the pleasure of the sovereign. And we 
43 say, therefore, that there is direct unity between the 
44 way in which the Indian peoples are seen on these 
45 hiararchy of civilization and the way in which their 
46 rights are viewed. And we say this explains why 
47 certain statements are made at this juncture in 
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1 history which seemed to be inconsistent with previous 
2 statements made by the same courts in the era before. 
3 THE COURT: Is it convenient to adjourn? 
4 MR. JACKSON: Yes, my lord. 
5 THE COURT: All right, thank you. 
6 THE REGISTRAR: Order In court. Court stand adjourned until 
7 2:00. 
8 
9 (LUNCHEON RECESS TAKEN AT 12:30) 
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1 (PROCEEDINGS RECONVENED PURSUANT TO LUNCHEON ADJOURNMENT) 
2 
3 THE REGISTRAR: Order in court. 
4 THE COURT: Mr. Jackson, before you start, perhaps I could just 
5 say to Mr. Prelypchan, I spoke to him on the plane 
6 this morning about the difficulty I was having with 
7 his disks. And I can tell you, Mr. Prelypchan, the 
8 problem was that I hadn't encountered the write 
9 protect problem before. This is a little clip in the 

10 bottom of the disk. And if you don't have it in the 
11 right position it doesn't function. And I don't think 
12 it makes any difference whether the disks are high 
13 density or low density. 
14 MR. PRELYPCHAN: But you are able to do it now with no problem? 
15 THE COURT: Yes. And you can have your disks back, and I will 
16 keep the originals. 
17 MR. PRELYPCHAN: I will leave it with your lordship. 
18 THE COURT: All right. You have the first set. 
19 MR. PRELYPCHAN: I will just presume that the second set you 
20 have will be sufficient? 
21 THE COURT: Yes. I haven't tried them yet because they are low 
22 density. I haven't tried low density because that is 
23 a new experience. I have had no trouble with the 
24 Plaintiff's disks, except that I am having trouble 
25 because the content of each part is so long. 
26 MR. JACKSON: They are very high density. 
27 THE COURT: Intensity I think is more. But that's a small 
28 problem I can deal with. I think now I have solved 
29 the problem with the Provincial's disks. 
3 0 MR. PRELYPCHAN: Thank you. 
31 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Mr. Jackson. 
32 MR. JACKSON: My lord, you had made the comment before we took 
33 the lunch break that Kagama, given the facts and the 
34 issue before the court, was one whose very special 
35 issue of criminal jurisdiction was at stake. And my 
36 response to that was that the plenary doctrine, which 
37 the case has been seen as authority for, was one which 
38 was quickly applied outside of the criminal law area. 
39 And you see the working through of the Federal plenary 
40 power in the form of the General Allotment Act of 
41 1887. And I can just refer your lordship to page 209 
42 where previously I have set out the general 
43 prescription of the General Allotment Act of 1887 
44 which had the effect of allotting tribal lands on an 
45 individual basis and making them marketable. 
4 6 THE COURT: Yes. 
47 MR. JACKSON: And it also worked its way through in relation to 


